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The house whichHenry John Klutho designed for Mr. Thomas V.
Porter was originally Tocated at 317 West Church Street (west h of
lot 3, block 57) on a piece of ﬁroperty which Porter purchased in 1901
(Duval County Records™ Deed Book 3, p. 274). The house remained in
the Porter family until its sale in 1925 to the First Christian Church
of Jacksonville (Duval County Records, Deed Book 302, p. 482). In
order to make room for a new church building, the Porter House was
moved around the corner to face on Julia Street where it presently
stands on church property and is used as a Sunday school and recrea-
tion facility.

As originally constructed, the house rested on brick piers and
at the time of its relocation in 1925 the building was placed on a
brick foundation which included a partial basement. Entry to the
basement is gained via two stairwells, one on the east front to the
left of the portico and another on the north side near the northeast
corner of the building. Windows are placed at regular intervals within
the foundation wall to admit light to the basement area and they are
double-hung sash in plain wooden surrounds. Other alterations
included the removal of four tall brick chimneys and the balustrade
which defined the roof deck. The most significant alteration, however,
was the removal of the one story veranda which extended from both
sides of the portico the full length of the side elevations of the
house. This veranda was classically treated with paired Corinthian
columns placed at regular intervals and rising to a full entablature
with dentilled cornice and a deck defined by a wooden balustrade.

. : . .
Reyij«ETari]E’\-ﬁooAfg%%,r B%urst%ihslypteép] w?gtr\}\?itﬁlncﬁes tJ(gI:klél(l)JF]r\]/(l)iIse”'J Iraels’\s”\l'("c\'iBlic
Eibrary of 1904 and the east and west additions to the Florida State
House made in 1923 (original drawings for east and west wing of the
Capitol are in the Florida Archives, Tallahassee). The house is
imposing even in the midst of larger, more recent structures. It is
particularly large for a dwelling house and awe-inspiring in its
attention to exterior detail. Two-and-a-half stories in height,

the building is of frame construction with a weatherboarded exterior.
In keeping with the classical theme, corner boards are treated as
pilasters. The house has a low hipped roof with flat deck and
Palladian dormers on the north, east and west elevations. The focal
point of the east or main facade is a two story portico and it is
h?re that the atlie ti(_l’_\’\tegCN\ail is carried to the fu}lest. Groups
of three colossal Go-rTrlTm arr*olumns located at each of the front
corners of the portico rise”t0 a full entablature and dentilled
cornice which surrounds the entire structure. Above the cornice

are wide bracketed eaves with acanthus motif in the brackets. At the
second level of the house, within the portico, is a serpentine
balcony defined by a spindle post balustrade and resting on a platform
of dentilled cornice and plain entablature. The egg and dart motif
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IS used consistently on the exterior of the building, being incor-
porated into the entablature above the dentil course. The portico
has a coffered ceiling, the indented panels defined by egg and dart
borders with rosettes in each of the corner coffers. The two story
frontispiece is in perfect balance with a pair of double hung sash
windows with transoms leading onto the balcony. Immediately beneath
the balcony, the main entrance to the house consists of a pair of
glazed doors in oak frames flanked by large leaded sidelights, all
of which is set into fluted framing pilasters. Above is a leaded
glass iLxnette, which covers the whole expanse of doors and side-
lights. A molding of rosettes encloses the lunette and carved
heraldic devices are located in the upper corners of the entrance
piece. There is a subsidiary entrance on the north side of the
house which consists of double %Iazed doors with transoms and
sidelights. Most interesting about this grouping is the swag motif
used in the entablature above. Located on the second floor directly
above this entrance is a Palladian-like window grouping of windows
with colored glass depicting mythological scenes. On the interior
of the house this window occurs at the first landing of the stair
(see photo #3). This same mythological theme appears in other
colored glass windows located throughout the house in addition to
classical and mythological figures used in light fixtures, wall
coverings, etc. All windows with the exception of transoms and
those filled with colored glass are double-hung sash. In addition,
all second story windows have an oval motif in the upper one-third
of the upper sash.

The Porter House is square in plan with a wide central hall.
All of the entrance hall and staircase hall, including the stairs,
iIs St. Domingo mahogany (Klutho, n.p.). The house was completed
at a cost of $25,000 (Klutho, n.p.). The main hall is fourteen feet
wide. All of the rooms in the house are commodious and all ground
floor rooms have dentilled crown molding and channelled window
and door surrounds with corner blocks. Double sliding doors of oak
lead into all of the ground floor rooms off the main hall. The
building is well maintained and is in constant use.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

H. J. Klutho

In the words of the architect, Henry John Klutho, "this is a
'‘Classic Colonial' residence, and from a point of artistic effect
and beauty, will hold its own anywhere in the South." (Klutho, n.p.).
It is for this reason that the Thomas V. Porter House is being
nominated to the National Register of Historic Places.

exterior alterations and its relocation,

] _ . Despite its
It survives in downtown

Jacksonville amidst many modern structures as the finest remaining
classical residence of the period and certainly the best of Klutho's

classical designs.

At the time of its constructip”™i in

occupied a position

of prominence near the intersection of Church and Julia Streets. The
desirability of this location is substantiated by the fact that the
house on the northeast corner of this intersection was the home of

the Hon. James P. TaliaflerrQ, U.S. Senator from Florida from 1899 to
1911 and the home on the southeast,corner:of the.;intersection, was;.t.hiat
of the Hon. Dmcan U. Fletcher, U.S. Senator from Florida from 1909
until his deatliTimeg-~tlhibn, May 26, 1909, p. 3). In a
streetscape of the period, i1t is noteworthy that the houses are not
only of comparable size but very similar iu ,style and elJditerior,.detail:
Today only the Klutho design remains to attest to the magnificence

of these dwellings. . 0.,

Thomas V. Porter was a native of Jefferson County, Texas,
where he was bom in 1852. Following a formal education in Illinois
and a period of mercantile work in Texas, he came to Florida in 1885
due to failing health. He moved from Gainesville to Jacksonville
in 1890 and was one of the organizers of the wholesale grocery house
of Porter, Rogers and Company which later incorporated and merged
into the C. B. Rogers Company. In 1902, this was one of the largest
wholesale grocery houses in the state with T. V. Porter as its
second vice-president. In addition, he was a Director of the National
Bank of Jacksonville, a director of the Florida Naval Stores Company,
and a large owner and dealer in real estate, including orange groves
in central Florida (biographical information about Porter from Rerick,
p. 46; real estate information from Duval County Records, Probate
Department, Will of Thomas V. Porter, July 11, 1914).
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As an active and prominent Jacksonville merchant at the turn
of the century. Porter would have become familiar with the work
of Henry John Klutho, who by 1902 had already completed several
sizeable buildings. It is probably safe to say, however, that the
Porter House was the first of his residential commissions in
Jacksonville. Klutho had come to Jacksonville from New York immedi-
atel?]/ after the fire of 1901 in an effort to help rebuild the city.
In the next ten years he designed all of the major downtown buildings,
both commercial and municipal. Although Klutho's later work is
normally categorized as Prairie School (because of his associations
with Frank Lloyd Wright and because of the influence which Wright
had on his designs), his earliest Jacksonville buildings tend to be
Sullivanesque it commercial, and classical 1f residential.

~The Thomas V. Porter House, now serving a viable adaptive use,
survives as the best of Klutho's classical designs.



Form No. 1f)-300a
(Aev 10-74

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OE THE INTERIOR FOR NPS USE ONLY

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE oo DEC 1 9 1975
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES VAY 13 1976
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM DATE ENTERED

Porter, Thomas V., House
CONTI NUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER PAGE

Duval County Courthouse, Jacksonville, Florida. Office of the
Clerk of the Circuit Court. Duval County Records
(Subgroup: Deed Book 3, p. 274; Deed Book 302; p. 482).

. Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court.
Duval County Records (Subgroup: Will and Probate Papers of
Thomas V. Porter, July 11, 1914).

Florida Times-Union, May 26, 1909, p. 3.

Klutho, H. J. Some Buildings by the Architect, H. J. Klutho.
Unpublished pamphlet dated 1904, no page nxombers. Xerox
copy in possession of Division of Archives, History and
Records Management, Tallahassee, Florida.

Photograph of building on its original site showing its juxta-
position to other houses in the vicinity. Photo dates from
around 1905 and a xerox copy is on file in the Historic
Preservation Section of the Division of Archives, History
and Records Management, Tallahassee, Florida.

Rerick, Roland. Memoirs of Florida. Vol. 1. Atlanta: The
Southern Historical Association, 1902. This volume contains
a brief biography of the life of Thomas V. Porter.
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